
* GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 
Wednesday, March 8, 2023 – 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. Action Items
A. Award Contract for Glass Arts Studio (Jund) 

B. Decision on Architectural Drawings for the Ceramics Club Space (Jund)

4. Member Comments - Regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR
member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

5. Adjournment



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Award of Contract for Glass Artists Improvement 
Project

Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: March 8, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 
David Jund, Facilities Director 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration and Facilities 

Action Requested: 
Award a contract for the Glass Artists Improvement Project 

Strategic Plan:  
GOAL 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities  

Background Justification: 
The Glass Artists Club became a GVR club in 2016. Since space at GVR is limited, they have 
operated out of the North Abrego Center meeting room (approximately 750 sq ft) and are 
utilizing a shed in the parking lot. Their kilns are located in a narrow storage area at West 
Center (approximately 405 sq ft). In 2020, GVR purchased the then Canoa Hills Golf 
Clubhouse as a potential permanent location for the Glass Artists Club, a growing and 
popular club (see membership growth rate attached). Architectural plans were developed to 
house the Club in the lower level of the Clubhouse (approximately 4,280 sq ft, but 
expandable to approximately 4,800 sq ft) and at an estimated cost of $1,600,000. In July of 
2021, GVR paused the project due to the potential high cost, and began researching other 
more cost-effective solutions. 

Immediately after the pause, staff begin exploring opportunities for improved facility 
utilization. Staff and the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P & E) Chair met with the 
boards from several clubs, including, but not limited to, Glass Artists, Ceramics, and Lapidary, 
to discuss their club’s interests and needs. Staff presented this history, background, and 
process during the Board of Directors’ December 6, 2021, Work Session (please see the 
attached staff report and Minutes). During the Board’s Regular meeting on December 15, 
2021, the Board unanimously supported a motion to direct staff to pursue the 
recommendation made by the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P & E) to pursue the Plan 
A capital plan as presented, which included Phase I design services for an Arts Center at West 
Center to potentially house the Glass Artists Club, Lapidary, and Metal (please see the 
attached staff report, exhibits, and Minutes). Please note, included in the staff report, the 
Facilities Organization Options Survey reiterated the results of the 2018 member survey, 
which mirrored the member feedback gathered during the master planning in 2016, which 
indicated that Improved spaces for cramped clubs ranked #2 as a priority. 

Staff provided an update on Plan A during the P & E Committee meeting on February 10, 
2022. At that meeting, staff introduced the concept of creating a Fine Arts Campus at Santa 

Agenda Topic 3.A.

1



Rita Springs and discussed potential use or repurposing of currently underutilized space at 
Santa Rita Springs to allow for the expansion and relocation of existing arts clubs. At that 
time, the concept of including Glass Arts at an Arts Center at West Center remained, but the 
concept of relocating Ceramics to Santa Rita Springs was being explored (please see the 
attached staff report, exhibits, and Minutes).  

During the May 18, 2022, Board of Director’s Work Session, the Board was asked to review 
concept drawings and cost estimates associated with a potential Arts Center at West Center 
and discuss how best to move forward. During the meeting, staff pointed out that in order 
for an Arts Center to move forward, a loan would likely be needed, but that it remained to be 
seen as to whether the GVR membership would support the use of debt financing for this 
endeavor. Staff also provided an update on the relocation of clubs and spaces. Here are a few 
mentioned: 

• Arts and Crafts Club moving from Desert Hills to Santa Rita Springs
• Ceramics Club expanding into vacated Arts and Crafts Club at Desert Hills
• Billiards at Desert Hills moving to the Canoa Hills Clubhouse to allow for Fitness

Center expansion at Desert Hills
• Computer Club moving to the Kino Room at Santa Rita Springs. Note that the

Computer Club was first offered space at Desert Hills in the current fitness and poker
rooms (1,911 sq ft versus the 909 sq ft Kino Room the Club chose to move into)

• Glass Artists Club possibly moving into 4,200 sq ft of vacated Computer Club space at
Santa Rita Springs

To continue moving forward, staff mentioned that the clubs would need to meet individually 
and collectively with a space planner (architect) to layout plans. The Minutes reflect that the 
Board agreed to allow the clubs and staff to work on the placements and bring back to the 
Board for approval (please see the attached staff report and Minutes). Since the Board work 
session on May 18, 2022, the following actions have occurred at Committee and Board 
meetings:  

October 13, 2022, Planning and Evaluation Committee meeting 
• Motion to reduce the FY2023 budget amount in the Proposed 2023 Budget Capital

Improvement Plan for the Glass Artists Project from $700,000 to $300,000, essentially
making the project budget amount $500,000 instead of $900,000 over the years 2022-
2023.

October 14, 2022, the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) work session 
• The P&E Committee’s recommendations were made to the FAC. They discussed the

2023 Proposed Budget but there was no action taken because it was a work session.
October 18, 2022, Fiscal Affairs Committee meeting 

• The committee members discussed the P & E recommendations.
• The FAC motioned to recommend to the Board to adopt the 2023 Proposed Budget

recommended by the CEO, which included the Capital Improvement Plan, a budget of
$700,000 for 2023 (a total project budget of $900,000 when including $200,000 from
2022).

October 26, 2022, Board of Directors Regular meeting 
• Motion made to adopt the 2023 Proposed Budget, which included the Capital

Improvement Plan, proposed by the CEO and recommended by the FAC. Motion was
approved by a 7-5 vote.

2



January 25, 2023, Board of Directors Regular meeting (Staff Report and Minutes attached) 
• Staff presented a sole source, not to exceed contract for the Glass Artists Project in

the amount of $884,000 to Barker Contracting with the understanding that the final
cost would be lower due to additional value engineering elements not included in
their base bid. Note that the bids received based on the RFP were based on revised
drawings which included ALL of the Value Engineering (VE) cost savings measures
identified.

• Some Board members expressed concern that a request for proposals (RFP) or
invitation to bid (ITB) was not issued and expressed concern that the project was too
big and too expensive.

• Motion made to award a contract to the contractor. The motion failed on a 6-6 vote.

A request for proposals (RFP) (see attached) for this project was issued on February 3, 2023, 
with an initial submittal due date of February 22, 2023, but was extended to March 1, 2023 
to allow contractors more time to prepare and submit their proposals. Staff reached out to 
three qualified general contractors directly, inviting their proposals, and posted the RFP on 
the GVR website to allow additional contractors the opportunity to submit proposals. Two (2) 
proposals were received from the following contractors along with their bid price to 
construct the project:  

• Canyon Building & Design: $734,232.38
• Division II Construction Co. Inc.: $701,503.00

Proposals were placed on the Board-secured website for Board member review only since 
many contractors require their proposals be kept confidential to avoid sharing proprietary 
information.  

Both proposals received are from reputable qualified general contractors. Neither proposal 
was complete per the RFP issued. Canyon Building & Design submitted their proposal prior to 
the 4pm deadline. Division II Construction Co. Inc. submitted their proposal after the 4pm 
deadline. GVR MAY reject late bids but isn’t required to per the RFP. Staff is not recommending to 
reject any bids. Canyon Building & Design’s proposal provides a complete breakdown of costs; 
whereas, Division II Construction Co. Inc.’s does not, but only provides their bid number. Therefore, 
since Canyon Building & Design submitted a more complete proposal and submitted their proposal by 
the deadline, staff is recommending the Board award the contract to Canyon Building & Design in an 
amount not to exceed $734,232.38.  
Architectural costs to date concerning the Glass Artists Project:  
WSM Clubhouse field verification: $6,000  
Scott Rumell at Canoa Hill Clubhouse: $17,101.65 (includes Ceramics and Glass Artists space) 
WSM Glass Artists Project at SRS: $54,475 
Total: $77,576.65 

 Board Options: 
1. Award a contract for the Glass Artists Improvement Project to Canyon Building &

Design, with an amount not to exceed $734,232.38, and authorize the President to
sign the contract, subject to legal counsel final review and approval.

2. Award a contract for the Glass Artists Improvement Project to Division II Construction
Co. Inc. with an amount not to exceed $701,503.00, and authorize the President to
sign the contract, subject to legal counsel final review and approval.

3



3. Reject any and all proposals and award a contract to Barker Contracting, Inc. with an
amount not to exceed $884,000, and authorize the President to sign the contract,
subject to legal counsel final review and approval.

4. Reject any and all proposals and rebid the project.
5. Reject any and all proposals and direct staff how to move forward.

Staff Recommendations: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion:  
Award a contract for the Glass Artists Improvement Project to Canyon Building & Design, with 
an amount not to exceed $734,232.38, and authorize the President to sign the contract, 
subject to legal counsel final review and approval. 

Attachments: 
1. Glass Artists Club growth rate since inception
2. December 6, 2021 Staff Report and Board Work Session Minutes
3. December 15, 2021 Staff Report and Board Meeting Minutes
4. February 10, 2022 Planning and Evaluation Committee Agenda, Exhibit and Minutes
5. May 18, 2022 Staff Report and Board Work Session Minutes
6. January 25, 2023 Staff Report and Board Meeting Minutes
7. Capital Costs Related to Hobby and Non-Dedicated Clubs
8. Request for Proposals (RFP) and Addendum

4



Attachment #1

5



Attachment #2

6



7



8



9



10



Attachment #3

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



Attachment #4

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



Attachment #5

40



41



42



43



Attachment #6

44



45



46



47



48



Attachment #7

49



Attachment #8

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Special Meeting 
Direction to Staff on Ceramics Expansion

Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: March 8, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 
David Jund, Facilities Director 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration and Facilities 

Action Requested:  
Provide direction to Staff on next steps concerning Ceramics Club expansion. 

Strategic Plan:  
GOAL 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities  

Background Justification: 
The Ceramics Club has been operating out of dedicated space at Desert Hills (approximately    
1,838 sq ft). Recently, with the Arts and Crafts Club relocating to Santa Rita Springs, the 
Ceramics Club was able to expand into the vacated Arts and Crafts space (approximately 722 
sq ft), bringing the current total to approximately 2,560 sq ft.  

In 2020, GVR purchased the then Canoa Hills Golf Clubhouse as a potential new permanent 
location for the Ceramics Club (see membership growth rate attached), which would have 
provided approximately 4,025 sq ft of space. Ceramics would have occupied the upper level 
of the Clubhouse, while Glass Artists would have occupied the lower level of the Clubhouse. 
Cost estimates to reconstruct the upper level for the Ceramics Club were approximately 
$500,000. Architectural plans were developed to house both clubs. In July of 2021, GVR 
paused the project due to the potential high cost (approximately $2,100,000 for both clubs, 
not including the cost of the building and parking lot) and began researching other more 
cost-effective solutions. 

Immediately after the pause, staff begin exploring opportunities for improved facility 
utilization. Staff and the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P & E) Chair met with the 
boards from several clubs, including, but not limited to, Glass Artists, Ceramics, and Lapidary, 
to discuss their club’s interests and needs. Staff presented this history, background, and 
process during the Board of Directors’ December 6, 2021, Work Session (please see the 
attached staff report and Minutes).  

During the Board’s Regular meeting on December 15, 2021, the Board unanimously 
supported a motion to direct staff to pursue the recommendation made by the Planning and 
Evaluation Committee (P & E) to pursue the Plan A capital plan as presented (please see the 
attached staff report, exhibits, and Minutes). Plan A recommended expanding Ceramics into 
the Arts and Crafts room and eventually into the Lapidary space at Desert Hills, once and if 
Lapidary is able to consolidate in a different location such as West Center. Please note, 
included in the staff report, the Facilities Organization Options Survey reiterated the results 
of the 2018 member survey, which mirrored the member feedback gathered during the 

Agenda Topic 3.B.

71



master planning in 2016, which indicated that Improved spaces for cramped clubs ranked 
#2 as a priority.  

Staff provided an update on Plan A during the P & E Committee meeting on February 10, 
2022. At that meeting, staff introduced the concept of creating a Fine Arts Campus at Santa 
Rita Springs and discussed potential use or repurposing of currently underutilized space at 
Santa Rita Springs to allow for the expansion and relocation of existing fine arts clubs. At that 
time, the concept of including Glass Arts at an Arts Center and West Center remained, but 
the concept of relocating Ceramics to Santa Rita Springs was being explored (please see the 
attached staff report, exhibits, and Minutes).  

During the May 18, 2022, Board of Director’s Work Session, the Board was asked to review 
concept drawings and cost estimates associated with a potential Arts Center at West Center 
and discuss how best to move forward. During the meeting, staff pointed out that in order 
for an Arts Center to move forward, a loan would likely be needed, but that it remained to be 
seen as to whether the GVR membership would support the use of debt financing for this 
endeavor. Staff also provided an update on the relocation of clubs and spaces. Here are a few 
mentioned: 

• Arts and Crafts Club moving from Desert Hills to Santa Rita Springs
• Ceramics Club expanding into vacated Arts and Craft Club at Desert Hills
• Billiards at Desert Hills moving to the Canoa Hills Clubhouse to allow for Fitness

Center expansion at Desert Hills
• Computer Club moving to Kino Room at Santa Rita Springs. Note that the Computer

Club was first offered space in Desert Hills in the current fitness and poker rooms
(1,911 sq ft versus the 909 sq ft Kino Room the Club chose to move into)

• Glass Artists Club possibly moving into 4,200 sq ft of vacated Computer Club space at
Santa Rita Springs

To continue moving forward, staff mentioned that the clubs would need to meet individually 
and collectively with a space planner (architect) to layout plans. The Minutes reflect that the 
Board agreed to allow the clubs and staff to work on the placements and bring back to the 
Board for approval (please see the attached staff report and Minutes). Since the Board work 
session on May 18, 2022, the following actions have occurred at Committee and Board 
meetings:  

October 13, 2022, Planning and Evaluation Committee (P & E) meeting 
• Long Term Capital Plan Proposed Plan presented. Included $50,000 in 2022 and

$150,000 in 2023 for Ceramics Expansion.
• The Committee made no recommendations to change the project or limit funding.

October 14, 2022, the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) Work session 
• Long Term Capital Plan Proposed Plan presented. Included $50,000 in 2022 and

$150,000 in 2023 for Ceramics Expansion.
October 18, 2022, Fiscal Affairs Committee meeting 

• The committee members discussed the P & E recommendations.
• The FAC motioned to recommend to the Board to adopt the 2023 Proposed Budget

recommended by the CEO, which included in the Capital Improvement Plan a budget
of $150,000 for 2023 (a total project budget of $200,000 when including $50,000 from
2022).

October 26, 2022, Board of Directors Regular meeting 

72



• Motion made to adopt the 2023 Proposed Budget, which included the Capital
Improvement Plan, presented by the CEO and recommended by the FAC. Motion was
approved a 7-5 vote.

January 12, 2023, Planning and Evaluation Committee meeting (Draft Minutes) 
• Staff suggested that the P & E Committee recommend to the Board, expanding the

current Ceramics space into the exterior walkway to add more square footage and
width to the space, in addition to moving this project forward now for potential cost
savings by combining with the Fitness Center project. The expansion would increase
the current space of 2,560 sq ft to approximately 3,488 sq ft.

• Motion: Skytta moved, seconded to recommend to the Board of Directors to combine
the projects of the expansion of the Ceramics Club space with the Fitness Center
Expansion at Desert Hills for potential cost savings purposes. Passes: unanimous

January 25, 2023, Board of Directors Regular meeting 
• Staff recommended a sole source, Cost Plus contract for the Ceramics Project

Expansion project, and to increase the budget for this project from $200,000 to
$300,000 (please see staff report attached).

• Some Board members expressed concern that a request for proposals (RFP) or
invitation to bid (ITB) was not issued and expressed concern that the project was too
big and too expensive.

• Motion made to award a contract to the contractor. The motion failed on a 6-6 vote.

Before contributing any additional resources to this project, staff is asking the Board for clear 
direction on how to move forward. If the Board is interested in expanding the Ceramics Club 
space from 2,560 sq ft to 3,488, which will include bringing the entire space up to County 
Code requirements, the cost estimate for architectural services is approximately $32,500, 
which includes complete permit and bid-ready construction documents.  

 Board Options: 
1. Direct staff to work with an architect to develop complete permit and bid-ready

construction documents which would expand the current Ceramics Club space from
2,560 sq ft to 3,488 sq ft and bring the entire space up to County Code requirements.

2. Provide alternative direction to Staff.

Staff Recommendations: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion:  
I move to direct staff to work with an architect to develop complete permit and bid-ready 
construction documents which would expand the current Ceramics Club space from 2,560 sq 
ft to 3,488 sq ft and bring the entire space up to County Code requirements.  

Attachments: 
1. Ceramics Club growth rate
2. December 6, 2021 Staff Report and Board Work Session Minutes
3. December 15, 2021 Staff Report and Board  Meeting Minutes
4. February 10, 2022 Planning and Evaluation Committee Agenda, Exhibit and Minutes
5. May 18, 2022 Staff Report and Board Work Session Minutes
6. January 25, 2023 Staff Report and Board Meeting Minutes
7. Capital Costs Related to Hobby and Non-Dedicated Clubs

73



Attachment #1

74



Attachment #2

75



76



77



78



79



Attachment #3

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



Attachment #4

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



Attachment #5

109



110



111



112



Attachment #6

113



114



115



116



117



Attachment #7

118




